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The Frederick Douglass Home at 141l W Street, S. E., is situated at the
top of Cedar Hill facing northeast, and overlocking Anacostia and Washing-
ton. The original circa 1855-1859 structure was probably a rectangular
brick 2-1/2 story central hall house with a gable-ended roof and four first-
floor rooms (parlor, library, sitting room, dining room), four second-floor
bedrooms, and attic. Later additions include a two-story frame kitchen wing
on the west, and on the east a second-story wing over the library and two
one-story bays off the front parlor. These additions, 'as well as a number
of outbuildings, all appear to have been constructed while Douglass lived
thépe; and; they will be maintained or rebuilt when the National Park Ser-
vice restores the estate to its appearance in 1895, the year Douglass died,

The house is now painted buff yellow with green trim. A single story
porch extends across the entire u43' width of the north front. This porch,
three wooden stepsabove grade, has a wooden floor and trim and four wooden
Doric columns which support a latticework strip, cornice, and roof. The
first floor has a central double door, each section of two panels, flanked
by double-hung side lights and surmounted by a transom. On either side of
the door, two 6/12 light double~-hung windows extend the full height of the
porch and have wooden exterior shutters. The second floor has a central
three-sided bay with French door in front and #/4 light double-hung windows
at the sides. On either side of the bay is a 6/6 light double-hung window
with shutters. Over the central bay there is a triangular gable with a
small round window in it. There is an ornate bracketed cornice and a
standing seam metal roof,

On the east side of the house two single story rectangular bays with
molded brick and 1/1 light double-hung windows are cbvious later additions,
The frame second-floor wing over the library has one small bedroom and was
probably built in 1892, The west frame kitchen wing built flush to the
east wing, although at a different time, and extending south of it, consists
of a large kitchen, three small rooms and stairway on the first floor and a
bedroom, bathroom, and large hall on the second. Most side and wing win-
dows in the house are 6/6 light double-hung with wooden exterior shutters,
The third floor has four small sloped-ceiling rooms,

The house is in very poor condition and has been closed pending resto-
ration, All of its historic contents have been. removed and placed in stor-
age. Restoration will involve replacement of much of the roof, strengthen~
ing of the walls and floor, reconstruction of the outbuildings, and the
| accurate refurnishing of the interior. Detailed descriptions and period
photographs of the principal interior rooms exist and should permit accu-
rate restoration. The National Park Service has prepared two excellent
studies on the appearance of the estate in 1895, One of these deals with
the house and its furnishings; the other, with the grounds which have
changed greatly since Douglass' death, Of the outbuildings--carriage house
and stable, [growlery, bar, corn crib, and privy--which stood on the propertﬂ
in 1892, only the ruins of three are still visible., The caretaker's cottag
connected to the rear of the house by a breezeway was not built until 1922,
Most of the huge cedar trees which gave the property its name have long
since died, as have many other trees and shrubs,
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The Joint Committee on Landmarks has designated the Frederick
Douglass Home a Category II Landmark of importance which contributes sig-
nificantly to the cultural heritage and visual beauty of the District of
Columbia, When funds are appropriated, the National Park Service plans to
restore it as an "historic house museum interpreting the life of its fa-
mous owner and his place in American history." Frederick Douglass--
runaway slave, abolitionist, orator, writer, civil servant, diplomat, and
perhaps the outstanding American Negro of the 19th Century--has often been
called the Father of the Civil Rights Movement., Both the house and the
grounds of the estate where Douglass made his home for the last 17 years
of his life are in poor condition and will require extensive repairs to
restore them to their 1895 appearance.

Frederick Douglass was born Frederick Augustus Washington Bailey, a
slave, in February 1817, on Maryland's Eastern Shore. He learned to read
and write at an early age, and at 21 he escaped to the North where he
married Anna Murray, a free Negress, and changed his name.to Douglass to
escape recapture, By 1841 he was an agent of the Massachusetts Anti-~
Slavery, Society. In 1845 he published The Narrative of the Life of
Frédevlck Douglass, Fearing recapture, DougIass fled to Engianazwﬁere
Quakers purchased his freedom, He returned to Rochester, New York in 1847
and within 10 years was a well-known lecturer, leader of Rochester's
Underground Railroad and the editor and publisher of the North Star, an
abolitionist newspaper. During the Civil War, Douglass promoted the idea
of Negro soldiers, Two of his sons served in the Union Army. Following
the war as the leading spokesman for the free American Negro, he continued
to work for Civil Rights. In 1872 Douglass came to the Districet of Colum-

of African Art). In his later years as one of the first Negroes appointed
to public office, he served as D, C, Marshall (1878), D. C. Recorder of
Deeds (1882), and U. S. Minister to Haiti (1889-1891).

The property on which the Frederick Douglass Home stands was origi-
nally part of a tract named Chichester owned by John Marbury and later
Enock Tucker, In 1854 John W, Van Hook, John Dobler, and John Fox formed
the Union Land Association, paid $19,000 for this tract of 237 acres, and
offered lots for sale in the early development of Anacostia. Between 1855
and 1859, the Association built a brick structure which was the original
part of the present house. Van Hook, himself, lived in the building from
18638 until 1876-77, when ownership was transferred to the Freedman's
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8. Significance--Frederick Douglass Home

Savings € Trust Company. On September 1, 1877, Douglass paid the Company
$6,700 for the house on its 9-3/4 acre lot and moved there soon afterward,

On September 24, 1878, he bought 5-3/4 additional acres south of his property
from Edna R. Talburtt., Between 1879 and 1895 Douglass devoted much time,
effort, and money to the improvement of Cedar Hill, adding several wings to
the house, a number of outbuildings and many trees,

Seventeen months after his first wife died in 1882, Douglass married
Helen Pitts, a white woman., Douglass died of a stroke at Cedar Hill on
February 20, 1895, His will was declared invalid; and, in order to preserve
the house as a memorial to him, Helen Pitts Douglass purchased the home from
the heirs for $12,000 in 1898, At her instigation, Congress in 13900 char-
tered the Frederick Douglass Memorial and Historical Association to which she
bequeathed the house at her death in 1903, In 1916 this Association joined
with the National Association of Colored Women's Clubs, who preserved the
estate and opened the house to visitors. ' When the National Park Service
under Public Law 87-663 took over maintenance of the house and its historic
contents on June 25, 1964, the structure was in a dilapidated and dangerous
condition. The furniture and other memorabilia are now in storage and the
house is closed pending funds for restoration. '




